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I! NEXT CAPITAL

VISION

To become the preferred Financial Services provider in Pakistan, assisting Individuals, Companies
and Financial Institutions find optimal Capital Markets related solutions

MISSION

To offer a wide range of products and services in a transparent manner with an emphasis on
integrity and client confidentiality

To provide customers with complete and innovative solutions by using the best minds and
technology
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Ninth (9") Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Next Capital Limited [the
Company] will be held on Wednesday, October 24, 2018 at 08:45 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company,
situated at 8th Floor, Horizon Tower, Plot Ne. 2/6, Block-III, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUS

1. To confirm the minutes of the Eighth (8%) Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on October 25, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2018 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon,

3. To approve the appointment of the Auditor for the year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration. The
refiring Auditor Messrs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.

Karachi. By order of the Board
Dated: October 03, 2018
-sd-
Mubhammad Najam Ali
Chief Executive

NOTES

i. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 18® October, 2018 to 24® October,
2018 (both days inclusive).

ii. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his or her proxy
to attend and vote.

Procedure including the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. I- Reference No. 3(5-A)

Misc/ARQ/LES/96 dated 26th January 2000 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan;

a. Members, proxies or nominecs shall authenticate their identity by showing their original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport and bring their folio numbers at the time of attending the
meeting,

b. In the case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resclution/Power of Attomey and attested copy of the
CNIC or passport of the nominee shall also be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

¢. In order to be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of our registrar no later than 48 hours
before the meeting, duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two persons with their names, addresses,
CNICs" numbers and signaturcs.

d. In the case of individuals, attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.
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e. In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney and attested copy
of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with proxy form.

f. Beneficial owners of the physical shares and whose shares are deposited with Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) are requested to bring their original Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC) along with participant's I.D. number and their account/sub-account number
in CDC to facilitate identification at the time of the meeting. In case of proxy, attested copies of
proxy's CNIC or passport, account/subaccount and participant's 1.D. numbers must be deposited
along with the Form of Proxy at the registered office of the Company as per paragraph No. ii
above, duly witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNICs' numbers must be
mentioned on the proxy form and attested photocopies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial
owner. In case of proxy for corporate members, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of
Attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting (unless
it has been provided earlier to the Shares Registrar).

iii. Physical transfers and deposit request under Central Depository System received at the close of the
business on October 17, 2018 by the Company's Registrar will be treated as being in time for
entitlement to attend, participate in and vote at the meeting.

iv. Members are requested to submit copics of their CNICs and promptly notify any change in address by writing to
the office of the registrar.

v. Consent for Video Link Facility

Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 10 dated 21 May 2014, Members may participate in the meeting via video-link
facility. if the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing
at geographical Iocation, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date
of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility
in that city.

In this regard, Members who wish to participate through video-link facility should send a duly signed request as
per the following format to the Registered Address of the Company at least 10 days before the date of AGM.

I'we of l
being a member(s) of Next Capital Limited, holder of Ordinary share(s) as
per registered folio/CDC Account No. hereby opt for video
conference facility at F

vi. Members are requested to immediately notify the change, if any, in their registered address/contacts numbers to
Share Registrar on the following address:
M/s. FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi Tel: +92 21 3438 0103-5, 3438 4621-3 Fax: 3438 0106

Annual Report 20181 05




I! NEXT CAPITAL

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

208 | 2007 | 2006 | 20s | =201 |
————————- Rupsat [n Thousands —————

Profit and Loss Account
Operating revenue 241,117 353,702 163,555 139.025 121,083
Investment gains - net 2,318 41,240 1311 3,596 2406
Crther income 20,467 29,508 2,723 10,224 10,590
Totsl Tumover 268,907 424,450 185589 152,845 134,079
Cperating & adminlstrative expensos 240,135 139422 164,286 124,662 113,738
Financial cost 16,497 30,142 26,583 13,265 11,586
Profit/{loss) before taxation 4763 139,960 (5.703) 14,704 B,755
Profit/{loss) after texation 25.336) 102,961 {16,146) 8,883 7436
Balance Sheet
Share capital 450,000 450,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Reseres {39,655) 40,186 (37,9100 {21,754) (30,612)
Share holders equity 410,385 430,185 152,090 178236 165,388
Lang term Nabllites - - 92,212 108,592 48
Current assets 635,536 1,053,184 562,005 334,31 174,328
Current labilltles 285,958 653,738 404,285 152,998 103,170
Total assets £97,302 1,143,524 658,591 439,826 272,607
Total liabilities 285,958 653,738 495,501 261,550 103218
RATIOS
Performance
Net Profit/{loss) Margin (%) -10.5% 29.1% -5.9% GA% 6.1%
Profit/{less) before tax (%) 2.0% 35.6% -3.5% 10.6% 7%
Expensefincome (%) 99.6% 61.7% 100.4% B9.7% 93.9%
Return on equity (%) -6.2% 21.0% -10,0% 5,09
Price Earning (%) -5.9% 12.1% -£.4% 6.3% BI%
Leverags
Debt to equity (%) 0.0% 005 56.9% BO.9% 005
Interest cover (x) 21 S.64 079 211 176
Uquidity
Currenk {x] 21 161 139 219 154
Eaming Par Share [EPS) {0.56) 2.78 (0.51) 0.44 0.37
Breakup Valus/Net Assets par share 912 1089 810 891 BAT
Market Value Per Share 550 23.01 B.DD 7.02 452
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CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

I am pleased to present to you, the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2018.

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Next Capital Limited (NCL) has performed their dutics
diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has managed the affairs of
the Company in an effective and efficient manner which results in record year for NCL and we were able
to deliver highest ever profits to our sharcholders.

The Board of Directors of NCL comprises of highly professional and experienced people. They bring
expertise from various business disciplines including an independent director. All Board members are
aware of their fiduciary responsibilities and fulfill these by playing an important role in providing
strategic direction to the management and necessary guidance for compliance with policies and standards.

The Board of Directors” performance has been highly satisfactory and Board Members have exercised the
required strategic oversight, The cfforts of the Board's Audit Committee and the Human Resources &
Remuneration Committee are particularly noteworthy for their valuable contributions in providing

requisite leadership support.

The Board has actively participated in strategic plarming process enterprise risk management system,
policy development, and financial sfructure, monitoring and approval. All the significant issues
throughout the year were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen and formalize the
corporate decision making process.

The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulation applicable on the Company and the Board has always prioritized the
Compliance with all the applicable laws and regulation in term of their conduct as directors and

At the end I would like to thank our shareholders, my fellow directors and stakeholders for all their
support & again acknowledge with gratitude the sustained and ongoing dedication of the company’s
management and staff in very challenging operating conditions. We look forward to future success in the
Company’s endeavors,

Gen, Tariq Wascem Ghazi (Retd.) Scptember 24, 2018
Chairman
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors’ of Next Capital Limited (the Company) are pleased to present their report along with the sudited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018,

Economic Review & Outlook

The economic growth of the country sustained its momentum as the real GDP registered an annual growth of 5.8% (+0.4%YoY).
The growth was led by a 3.8% and 6.2% jump in agriculture and manufacturing sector, Services sector grew by 6.4% compared
to 6.5% last year. Better and subsidized availability of farm inputs, monelary easing scenario and consistent waler provisioning
transpired growth in agriculture, previously at 2.1% while growth in the manufacturing sector can be largely attributed to regular
power disbursements and consumerism pickup. Inflationary pressures weakened as average CPI inflation declined to 3.9% froma
previous 4.2% largely owing to containment in food pricing,

The twin deficits, however, remained a primary concern throughout the year where Current Account Deficit (CAD)ofS 8% of
GDP (USD18.1 billion) was recorded (previously 4.1% of GDP). Higher machinery imporis and transponiation expenditure
mainly CPEC related, and energy supplies including oil and ING stained the import bill. Stunted growth in exports and
remittances continued 10 exert strain. Foreign exchange reserves deploted from USD21 .4 billion at the end of FY17 o USD16.4
billion as the year terminated with SBP's import coverage falling from 4 months to 2.1 months, Fiscal deficit for the year under
review stood at 6.6% of GDP (5.8% last year). Slower growth in revenues and higher current expenditure (eloction spending)
added to the woes. To finance the twin deficits, significant cuts in development spending need to be made with heavy domestic
and foreign borrowings. Pakistan's external debt stood at USD9S5 billion (33.63%6 of GDP) in FY2018 compared to USDE3 billion
(27.4% of GDP) last year,

The Pakistan Rupee succumbed with a 15.9% plummet against the greenback. The Dec"17 devaluation also triggered a tightening
monetary stancs resulting in a policy rate hike by 75 basis points to 6.5% with the Discount Rate becoming 7% as FY'18 ended.
Further, 2.5% PKR devaluation and 100 basis points hike in discount rate have occurred post June 2018,

With General Elections 2018concluded, the new government has to confront and address owtstanding debt and its Jooming
repayments with dwindling foreign exchange reserves together with Gscal imbalances. A prompt policy framework is inevitable
to tackle these challenges alongside generating sustained external fnancial inflows for stabilization of foreign exchange reserves
and stimulation of long-term sustainable growth.

Capital Market Review:

For the first half of FY'18, the market failed to pick an upward pace owing to foreign investment outflows of US§155mn (as
opposed 1o USS97mn in the corresponding period last year), political uncertainties including impending elections and barring of
the ex-Prime Minister from holding political office, the grey clouds bovering around the banking arena (HBL DFS penalty,
pension fund case reversal ruling)the OCAC's (Oil Companies Advisery Council) and Ministry of Petroleum's combined
decision to shut down RFO based power plants affecting most IPPs and refineries, a 22% increase in coal pricing, 37%
gppreciation in Brent pricing and the consequential inventory losses staining OMCs (7.14% weight in PSX-100), and finally, the
round of deprociation in PEKR that commenced from Dec "17.

Embarking upon 2018, invigorated investor enthusiasm amid snticipated PSX mmaround attributed to irpending elections, Over
January, the market yielded an impressive retumn of 8.8% sccompanying a net inflow of USS85.Tmn (highest since April 2014).
Political front also witncssed some respite post announcement of Scoate clections and measures including imposition of
additional regulatory duties, export package amendments, 5% devaluation in PKR viz & viz the USD, and, a 25bps increase in
policy mate, Amid the plummet in PKR, forex reserves also declined to US515.7bn in July 2018 while the import cover for peried
hovered around USS6ba/month reflecting an acute BoP deficit. Later in the year, Amnesty Scheme announcement in April "18
corrected the market to a 9.5x (with a high of 46,637) further reinforced by budgetary reforms including tax adjustment on broker
commission, abolishment of WHT (Withholding Tax) on boous shares issued by mutual funds, and tax credit upon subscription
to new listings (sukuk, equity).With June 2018 end, Pakistan's benchmark index outperformed its peers by ~4%, where MSCI
EM index declined by 1086 againsté®s plummet in KSE All shares with net FIPI outflows of US$288mn and the average volume
turnover being 174.53mn (average value traded — PERE. 14bn).

Going forward, the PKR recovery lately is entirely an aftermath of recent obligations from international donors. US52bn loan
from China under "Official Bilateral inflows" (US$1ba already transferred) and renewal of credit facility of US$4-5bn till 2020
by ITFC would provide the required cushion on the external front, Further aid of USS10bn from Saudi Arebia is also on the
cards. The emerging scenario would improve Pakistans expanding position in the plausible IMF bailout package of ~US12bn.
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Performance Overview:
The following table depicts the Company”s performance in the current year:

2017-2018 2016-2017
PAK RUPEES
Accnrmilated losses as at July 01 65,051,403 (37,909,634)
Cash Dividend paid during the year (45,000,000) =
Net (Loss)profil for the year (25,335,688) 102,961,037
{Accumulated lossesVunappropriated profit June 30 (5.284,285) 65,051,403
| (LossVearnings Per Share- Rupees 0.56) 278

Mext Capital Limited posted & pre-tax profit of PKR 4.7 million in FY 18 even after suffecing from all odds in the market but was
unable o coup with the doubled income tax on brokerage income resultantly the Company declared a loss of PKR 25.3 million,
Decline in trading volurnes in equity market reflected on brokerage income in FY 15 through 28.5% reduction. Institutional and
retail equity brokerage declines by 30.5% and 25.3%, respectively. Advisery and Consultancy services remsined dull during the
year duc to inaclive market, uncertainty and political scemario which caused major decline of 42.0% in Advisory and
Consultancy. Tax rate on equity brokerage doubled in budget 2018 which cost the Company PKR 32.6 million and cffective tax
rate to revenue worked out around 12.5% as compared (o 5.4% in FY'17. Operating expenses reduced by 9.6% but administrative
expenses increased by 18.4% duc to rise in selarics, rent and tax expenses. Finance cost reduced heavily by 46.6% due 1o lower
utilization of Anancing facilities on account of reduced funding recuirements.

5till the Company retained its presence considerably in foreign equity brokerage during FY 18.Going forward, the Company aims
1o continue 1o conccntrale on its growth strategy. Reduction in tax rate on brokerage income would bring equity business out of
red butpassive outlook for equity market could not be ruled out.Long fterm prospects for local equitics arevigorous, Moreover,
investment banking would also remain & key arca of focus for the Company, MNext Capital Limited is well positioned to capture
the pickup in busincss, given its strong presence in the institutional and retail segments.

Compliance Statement:

(a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

(b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

(e} Appropriate sccounting policies have been consistently applied in prepamation of fnancial statements snd accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment, with which we concur;

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the Companics Ordinance, 1984, as also stated in
note no.2 of the finmncial statements, have been followed in preparation of financial statements;

(g} The system of internal control is sound in desigm and hos been effectively implemented and monitored by Audit Commmittes;

(f) The Company is financially sound and there are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
COTCETT]

(g} There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations;

(h) Key operating and financial data of current year and preceding years is appearing after notice of AGM;

(i} There are no statutory payments on sccount of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on June 30, 2018
except for those disclosed in the financial statements;

(i} All the material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Compeny occurred between the balance
sheet date and the dete of the directors® report have been disclosed in the report;

(k) Five directors have oblained training under the Director’s Training Program;

(1} The Directors, CFOQ, CEQ, Company Scorctary, Head of Internal Auwdit and their spouses and minor children did not carry
out any transaction in the shares of the Company during the year; and

{m) Pattemn of sharcholding is disclosed after financial statements.

Meetings of the Board of DMrectors:
Five Board mectings wore held during the financial year 2017-2018 and were attended by the Directors as follows:

Name Designation Attendance
Gen, Tariq Waseem Ghawri (Retd.) Director’ Chairman 5
Mr. Mubammad Majam Al Director/ Chief Executive Officer 5
hirs. Hanna Khan = Directon! 3
Wr, Muhammad Zulgarmain Mahmood Khan Director 5
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi Director 5
Mr. Hassan Shahnawaz Director 5
Myr, Umer Habib Drirector 4

The Board in its meeting held on February 27, 2018 appointed Mr. Nadeem ul-Hag Usmani as Chief Financial Officer in place of
Wir. Om Perkash who resigned from the position of CFO. Further, Mr. Parkash promoted to Head of Internal Audit in place of
Mir, Mohsin Ali in the Board meeting beld on April 23, 2018,
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Composttion of Board
1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a, Male: Six
b. Female: Ome
2. The somposition of boerd is as follows:
Categorics Names
Lt Gen, Tarig Waseem Ghasd (FRetd.)
Independent THrectors Ivir. Hasan Shahnawar
Mr. Muhammad Zulgamain Mahmood Khan
Other Non-executive Directors Mre. Hanns Fhan
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi
Mr. Muoheroroad Najum Al
Execcutive Directors Mr. Umner Habib
Committors of Board
The board has formed committess comprising of members given below:
®) Andht Committee
Mir, Hosan Shahnawaz Chairmen, Independent Director
Mr. M. Zulgarmnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mr, Muhsmmad Zubuir Bllnhi Bember
b) Human Resource & Remunerstion Committes
Mr. Hasen Shehnawar Chairman, Independent Director
Mr. M. Zulgrrosin Mabmood Bhan Member
Mrs., Hanns Khan Member
Mr, Umer Habib Ifember

Dircctor's Remuneration

The Board of Directors have a formal policy snd transparent procedures for renmuneration of directors in scoordance with the
Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corponte Governance) Regulationa 2017,

Credit Rating

The Compuny hes boen re-assigned cotity ratings of *A-A-2" (A Minuw/A-Two) by JCR-V1S Credit Rating Company Lid, (JCR-
WIS). The cutlook on the assigned ratings is *Stable’. Isseer rating scale dofined by JCR-VIS &8 good credit quality; protection
factors are adequate, Risk factors may vary with possible changes in the economy.

Management Fating

The Cormpany has boon assigoed management mting of "“BMR2++" (BME Two Plus Plus) by JCR-VIS Crodit Rating Conmpany
L. {JCR-VIS). The outlook on the sssigned ratings is “Stable’. Issuer rating rationals defined by JOR-VIS ns strong regulatory
complinnes levels; sound external comrols, HR & IT services, risk management and fmancial managernemt along with adequate
initial control framework cliont relatonship.

Corporate and Seclal Responsibility

Company being a respansible corporite citizen always consclous to discharge ln obligations towards the people who work for i,
poople around s workplace and the socisty sz o whole,

Exteroal Anditors

The retiving andilors, Messrg, KPMG TascerHadid& Co., Chariered Accouniants, being cligible, have offered themaclvea fior
resppointment. Accordingly, the Board of Direciors endorees the recommendation of the Audit Commities for the appointment of
Messrs, KPMO Tascer Hadife Co., Chartered Accountants as the suditors for the Company for the financinl yoar ending June 30,
2019,

Apprecistion and Ackmowledgement

The memagement of Next Capital Linmited extends their decpest sppreciation to all the steke holders of the Cormpeny, meluding ite
distinguished clicots, hardworking employees, baokemn, consultenty and other business partoers, We slso thenk the Scouritics end
Exchange Commission of Pekistan (SECP), the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and
Financial Market Association (FMA) for their cooperation and kind sapport.

For and on behalf of the Board of THrecton
Diaie: Scplomber 24, 2018

c/ PR ol
" =2
Muhamnad Najam All Zubair Hllahi
Chicf Executive Officer Dircctor
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REVIEW REPORT ON STATEMENT OF CONMPLIANCE

To the members of Next Capital Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations”) prepared by
the Board of Directors of Next Capital Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 30
June 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Qur responsibility is to review whether the Staterment of Compliance
raeflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or te form an opinion on the effectivenass of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate govarnance procadures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
revievw and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with
the requirements of section 208 of the Companias Act, 2077. We are only required
and have ensured compliance of this reguirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committes. Wae have not carried out procedures to assess and determinea the
Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related
party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’'s
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

=
KIme  Caneny ~— |
Date: 24 September 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Name of company: NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
Year ending: 30" June 2018

Next Capital Limited (the Company) has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: S

b. Female: One

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Categorias Names

Lt. Gen. Tarig Waseem Ghazi (Retd.)

Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz

Mr. Muhammad Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan
Other Non-executive Directors Mrs. Hanna Khan

Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi

Mr. Muhammad Najam All

Mr. Umer Habih

Independent Directors

Executive Directors

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companles,
including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4, The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vislon/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of seven (7) eminent directors, out of which five (5] directors are
already certified under the Directors Training Program as follows:

1. Mr. Muhammad Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan
2. Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi

3. Mrs. Hanna Khan

4. Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz

5. Mr. Umer Habib
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10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, Including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complled with relevant requirements of the
Regulations.

11. CFO and CEQ duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman, Independent Director
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mr. Muhammad Zubair Ellahi Member

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman, Independent Director
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mrs. Hanna Khan Member
Mr. Umer Habib Member

13, The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committes for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings {quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Quarterly
b} HR and Remuneration Committes: Yearly

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality cantrol review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the
firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
of ethics as adopted by the |CAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
excapt in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. The Company has continued to present the details of all related party transactions before the Audit Committee
and upeon their recommendation to the Board for review and approval. The definition of related party used Is in
accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and applicable financial reporting frame work as the
regulations under Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 have not yet been announced.

19. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.
W : (
{ Lo u—"
Lt. Gen. Tariq Waseem Ghazi {Retd.)
Chairman

Annual Report 2018 | 13




L| : INE :::-: }: i E“ ,:: ! I‘:":: :"}! h.: ﬁ.'.ll.:"'- [. ma

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Next Capital Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018,
and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 30 June 2018 and of the loss, other comprehensive loss, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
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whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

S. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in
No. our audit
Valuation of Trade Debts QOur audit procedures included:
Refer notes 3.5 and 11 to the e obtaining an understanding of and
financial statements. testing the design and

implementation of management'’s
key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and
allowance for doubtful debts;

As at 30 June 2018, the Company's
gross trade debtors were Rs.
136.049 million against which
allowance for doubtful debts Rs.
2.095 million has been recorded.

on a sample basis, we tested the
itemns in the trade debtors’ ageing
report were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing individual items in the
report with underlying
documentation, and assessing the
assumptions and estimates made
by the management for the
provision for doubtful debts;

We identified the recoverability of
trade debts as a key audit matter
because estimating the recoverable
amount involves inherent
uncertainty and significant
management judgment.

e comparing, on a sample basis, cash
receipts from customers
subsequent to the financial year
end relating to trade debtor
balances as at 30 June 2018 with
the underlying documentation; and

s e recalculated the provision and
compared the results with those
estimated by the Company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Annual Report 2018 | 16




' 1IN # A ST 4 |
L %‘I__)“ | :‘-\..r.'l.-l;"..E 1 1AL

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errer, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Annual Report 2018 | 17




N nexT capTAL

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinions:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

bl the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statermnent of changes in eqguity and the statement
of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books
of account;

¢l investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) =zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980}, was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is
Muhammad Taufig.

-
Kime Caneny ~— |
Date: 24 September 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30,2018

ASSETS

Non-current assota

Proparty and aquipment

Intangitle assets

Investmant in shares of Pekistan Stock Exchange Limited
Long term deposits

Deferred tax asset - net

ey, A

Current assets
Short term Inveatment classified as ‘at fair value

through profit or loss' g
Investment in marginal financing system 10
Trade debts 77
Deposits and prepaymants 12
Advances and other raceivablas 13
Income tax refundable
Cash and bank balances 14

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capltal and resorve
Authorised capital
100,000,000 (30 June 2017: 50,000,000) crdinary shares of Rs. 10 each
lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital 75
Discount on issue of shares
{Accumulated losses) f unappropriated profit
Unreallsed galn on remeasurement of avallable for sale
Investments

Current llabllitiea

Short tarm loans from related parties - unsecured

Short term loan - unsecured

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Trade and other payables 78

28.1
7

Contingencles and commitments 18

Total equity and llabllities

The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees)
14,376,108 16,385,032
4,280,746 7,356,911
31,868,322 41,163,842
10,081,200 24,870,029
1,401 1,184,478
81,786,021 90,740,293
12,084,500 15,408,000
65,217,082 4,274 411
133,853,876 428,808,018
238,366,829 281,878,932
4,416,225 2,352 368
54,513,767 50,792,884
126,883 853 269,670,057
635,636,132 1,053,183,680

—G9.302.193 1133923973

=1.000.000.000 ___ 500,000,000
(50,000,000} {50,000,000)
(5.284,285) 65,051,403
15,628,782 25,134,303
410,344,507 480,185,708
41,266,011 47,185,729
18,053,742 80,074,088
3,051,638 .
- 48,090
546,429 450
286,857,648 653,738,267

—L302103 _1,143.223973

-

Director
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Operating revenue
Capital gain on sale of investments

Unrealised loss on remeasurement of investment classified
as ‘'at fair value through profit or loss'

Impairment loss on Trading Right Entitlement Certificale
(TREC)

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses

Finance cost

Other income

Profit before taxation

Taxation

- Current

- Prior

- Daferrad

Net (loss) / profit for the year

{Loss) / eamings per share - basic and diluted

Noie

21

27

N,

EXT CAPITAL

30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

241,118,681 353,702,249
2,945,852 42 632,268
(627,943) (1,392,000)
(2,500,000) (14,926,170)
(141,557,656)  (156,059,145)
(98,577,541) (83,362,666)
(18,497,139) (30,141,859)
(15,697,636) 110,452,697
20,466,818 29,507,596
4,768,182 139,960,293
(32,654,019)| (20,874,745)

2,331,984 -
217,165 | | (16,124,511
(30,104,870) (36,998,256)

(0.56)

53668 10208108

2.78

The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an integral part of these financial statements.

c 4‘#* _; %M’f : _

Chisf Executiva

Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees)

Net (loss) / profit for the year (25,335,688) 102,961,037
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that may be reclassified fo profit and loss account
Net unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement

of available for sale investments (9,505,511) 25,134,303
Total comprehensive Income for the year _(34841199) __ 128,095340

The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an integral part of these financial statements.

c 4_ﬂ M "

Chlef Executive Chlef Financlal Offlcer Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Captial gain on salo of imostments

Unreaisad loss in the value of imiestmants ol Tair
wvalue through profil or loss"

Muark-up on bark balances

Profit on exposure margin

Mark-up on imesiment in margin finuncing mywtem

Provisken mgainet receivables

Recehmublos writhon-off

Dividond incomo

Finanoe cost

Cash fows before working capiel changos
Changes In working capital

Decreass [ (Incresse) in curment ssssts

Trade dobis

Advances, depoaits, prapayments and cther receivables

(Decreass) / Incrmtss |n current llabliithes

Trwds and ol payablos

Cash panaraiod ffom / (vsed in) opembons
Flrminoa oosl pakd

Teopss pakd

Hat cash outfiow from operating ectivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paymiant for purchase of proparty and aguipments
Paymant for purchase of iIntangible sesots

Paymanis sgainat investmant In mangin fMinancing system
Recalpta from Imvestment In mangin inansing system

Mark-Up recalved on bank balances and exposuns margin
Mark-Up recaived on Investmant in margin nencing eystsm
Dividend recshned

Long tenm depogits
Mot cash (outfiow) / inflow from Investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Het cash (outfiow) / Inflow from finencing activities
Het decresse in cash and cash equivalsnis

Canh and canh aquivalants at beglnning of te yaas
Cash and cash equlvalents sl end of tha year

The annaxed notes, from 4 o 37, form an integral part of thess Ananclal statemoents,

Chief Financial Cfficer

i

RRLbBERT MUbbY

a5
a
o

30 June 20 Juna
2018 2047
(Fupess)
4,785,162 139,080,203
6,783,068 5,207,335
753,185 406,637
- 1,032,248
2,800,000 14,028,170
[2,845,042) 42,632,208}
627,843 1,392,000
(11,069,778) (15,383,137}
(5,420,324} (5,397, 6a8)
[3,151,058) (7.50:3,804)
2,004,858 -
1,000,000 -
(506, 803} (414,864}
18,497,138 |
— 8182033
10,931,218 121,835,060
{360,863, 153)
172, a7 A0
{533, 750,463)
22,709,851 (238,941,108)
(18,497,129) £39,141,858)
7.830,1 (315,450,671)
(3.794,135) (7. 382,530)
{185,000} (1,135,000}
(258,041,000} | (1.927.247,783)
167 .8099, 309 1.922,973,383
16,408,000 67,324,040
(8,778,481} (18,800,000
18,480,100 21,447 BBE
1,308,553 TATTITE
508,803 414,564
%ﬁﬁ% ﬂT.ﬂT"I..';‘n
(41,450,023) #
687,145,053 B61,189,084
(T84, 106,008) (789,305,817)
i AT 530,194
- {139,841,828)
- 00, 00
(B8.500,908) 179,671,633
(142,888, 204) (69,716,305}

260870057 339,385,363
—ZR PR, L ZERRIOORE,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Balance as at 1 July 2016
Transsction with owners of the Company

Issup of 25,000,000 shares of Rs. 10 sach at 20%
discount (refer note 15)

Total comprahensive income for the yesar

Profit for the year

Unrealisad gain on re-measuremant of availabla
for sale Investment

Balance as at 30 June 2017

Balance as at 1 July 217

Tolsf comprahensive fncome for the year

Loss for the year

Unreafizad loss on re-measuremant of avaiiabls
for sale investment

Trangactfon with owners of the Company

Cash dividend @ Rs. 1.00 per ordinary share of
Re. 10 each for the year ended 30 June 2017

Balance as & 30 June 2018

lssued, Discount  Unspproprigted Unreallsed gain Total
subscribad on lssue of profit / on remessuremant
and paid-up shares (Accumulaied  of investments
capital logses)
(Rupess)
200,000,000 - (37.504,634) 162,090,366
250,000,000  (50,000,000) 200,000,000
- 102,961,037 102 961,037
& - 134 1
= 102 861,037 25,134,303 128,085,340

—400.000.000 (50000000, BSORIAN  250M03 49085706

450,000,000 {50,000,000) 85,051,403 25,134,303 480,185,706
o (25,335, 688) (25,335,688
: - J|__sossta) 1
e (25,335, 6848) (9,505,511) (34,841,199)
- (45,000,000) (45,000,000)

30000000, _(50000000) ___(584205) ___1BG6T62, 41044507,

The annexed notes, from 1 to 37, form an Integral part of these financlal statements.

Chlef Financlal Officer

Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.
141

12

24

22

23

Corporate and general information
Legal Status and operations

Next Capital Limited (“the Company") was incorporated as a public limited company in Pakistan on 14
December 2009 under the Companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance, 1984). The
Company has obtained corporate membership from Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited ("the Exchange™)
on 2 February 2010 and was listed on the said Exchange on 27 April 2012.

The Company is a TREC holder of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and a member of Pakistan
Mercantile Exchange Limited and is accredited broker by Financial Market Association of Pakistan.
The Company is principally engaged in brokerage of shares, stocks, equity and debt securities,
commodities, forex and other financial instruments and corperate finance services. Further, the
Company is engaged in trading in equity and debt securities on its own account through ready, spot
and forward counters of the stock exchange. The registered office of the Company is siluated at Bth
Floor, Horizon Tower, Block 1l Clifton, Karachi. The branch offices are situated at;

- House # 43-A/S. Zafar Al Road, Aziz Avenue Gulberg-5, Lahore; and
- Plaza # 1167-CCA. Block - DD Phase - IV, DHA, Lahore Canit.

Significant transactions and events affecting the Company's financial position and performance

a) Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act 2017
({the Act) including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Act.

b) Fora detalled discussion about the Company's paerformance please refer to the Directors' report
accompanied in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:0

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) Issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companles Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
investments which are carried at fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company and have been rounded off to the nearest rupea.
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Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial slatements in conformity with approved accounting and reporting standards,
as applicable In Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilitias that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect
of tha following:

- Property and equipment (note 3.2 and 4);

- Useful Iives and Impairment of intangible assets (note 3.3 and 5);

- Classification and valuation of investiments (note 3.1, 6 and 9);

- Taxation (note 3.4 and 26);

- Provision against trade debts, investment in marginal financing system and cther receivables (note
3.5, 3.6, 10, 11 and 30 ); and

- Contingencies and commitments (note 3.7 and 19}

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standards

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and relevant:

- |AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows' amendments Introduced an additional disclosure that will enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The
amendment is part of |IASB's Disclosure Initiative, which continues to explore how financial
statement disclosure can be improved. In the first year of adoplion, comparative information need
not be provided. The relevant disclosure have been made in these financial statements,

= The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation
and presentation of annual financial statements of the Company. The disclosure requirements
cantained in the fourth schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in the elimination of
duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements; and incorporation of significant
additional disclosures which have been included in these financial statements.

b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective but not relevant;:

- There are certain new standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and new
interpretations that are mandatory for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 July 2017.
However, these do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting and
therefore have not been detailed in these financial statements.

¢} Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not
yat affective:
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The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2
clarify the accounting for cerlain types of arrangements and are effective for annual paricds
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas (a)
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments
saitled net of tax withholdings; and (¢} accounting for a modification of a share-based payment
from cash-sattled to equity-settied. The new requirements could affect the classification andfor
measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized
for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the
Company's financial statements.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to 1AS 40 ‘Investment Property’ - effective for
annual pariods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifias that an entity shall transfer a
property to, or from, investment property when, and only when there is a change in use. A
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of iInvestment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use, The
amandments are not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to 1AS 28 ‘Investments in
Assoclates and Joint Ventures'] (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January
2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measurea
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each
associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore,
similar election is avallable to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value
measurament applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiares. This election is made separately for each
investment entity assoclate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on
the Company's financial statements.

IFRIC 22 ‘Foraign Currency Transactions and Advance Congideration’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a
foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the tem It relates to. The
related item Is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is
recaived or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which recelpt of payment from

advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
antity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on the Company's
financial statements.

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019} clarifies the accounting for Income tax when there Is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpratation requires the uncertainly over tax treatment
be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is
not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

IFRS 15 'Revanue from contracts with customers' (effective for annual perieds beginning on or
after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whaether,
how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidanca,
including 1AS 18 'Revenue’, |IAS 11 "Construction Contracts' and IFRIC 13 "Customer Loyalty
Programmes’. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of
changes required In revenue recognition policles on adoption of the standard.

Annual Report 2018 | 26




‘ A IE=NS T 7~ A VT A I
| - i - "
L i *'-...)'1. 1 e .'F"" il B FAY

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and amendmant - Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation (effective for annual periocds beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2018
respectively). IFRS 2 replaces the existing guidance in I1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guldance on the classification and measurement of
financial instrumeants, a new expected craedit loss model for calculating impairment on financial
assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from |AS 39. The Company is currently in
the process of analysing the potential impact of changes required in classification and
measureament of financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of the
standard.

IFRS 16 'Leases’' (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16
raplaces existing leasing guidance, including 1AS 17 'Leases’, IFRIC 4 'Determining wheather an
Arrangement contains a Lease', SIC-15 'Operating Leases- Incentives' and SIC-27 'Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single,
on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset
reprasenting its right to use the underlying asset and a lease llability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue
to classify loases as finance or operating leases. The Company is currently in the process of
analysing the potential Impact of its lease armrangements that will result in recognition of right to
use assets and liabilities on adoption of the standard.

Amendment to |1AS 28 'Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures® - Long Term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual pericd beginning on or after 1 January 2019).
The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preferance sharas or with
loans for which repayment s not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term
interests or 'LTI"). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of
both IFRS 2 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be
applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial
statements,

Ameandments to IAS 19 'Employes Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlemeant
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that
on amendment, curtailment or settement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the
effect of the asset calling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any sattlament of
the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of
amendments is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address
amendments to following approved accounting standards:

IFRS 2 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Jeint Arrangemaeant - the amendment aims to
clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases |ts interast in a joint operation
that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interast
in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure
its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of
dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equily) are recognized
consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

1AS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale.
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The above amendments are effective from annual pericd beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and
are not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

Financlal Instruments
Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-dervalive financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified In any of the other three categories (i.e. loans and receivable, held
to maturity and fair value through profit or loss).

Fair value through profit or foss

An Instrument is classified as "at fair value through profit or loss’ if it Is held for trading or is designated
as such upon initial recognition. Financlal instruments are designated as "at fair value through profit or
loss® if the Company manages such investments and make purchase and sale decisions basad on the
fair value In accordance with the Company's documentad risk management or invaestment stratagy.
Financial assats which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term price
fluctuation or are part of the portfolio in which there is recent actual pattern of short term profit taking are
classified as held for trading or a derivative.

Financial instruments as "at fair value through profit or loss' are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are recognised in profit and loss account,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assats with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impaiment losses.

Financial fabiffities

Financial labilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective yield method.

Recognition

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised
using trade date accounling. From this date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of
the financlal assets or financial liabllities are recognised.

Financial iabllities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed is part of the contract
or the contract is a derivative contract.

Measurement

Financial instrurments are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisilion or issua of the financial instrument.
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Subsequent to Initial recognition, financial instruments classified as 'available-for-sale’ or fair value
through profit and loss' are measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of financial instruments
classified as "avallable-for-sale’ are recognised in equity untll derecognised or impaired, then the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised In equity are included in the profit and loss account.
Other financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective yield method, less impairment
lossas, if any.

Investment In marginal financing system

Payment made as a margin financing included as 'Investment in marginal financing system' at the
fair value of the consideration given. All margin financing transactions are accounted for on the
trade date.

Impalrment

Financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has cccurred after Initial recognition of asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss
avent (or events) has impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

Investments classified as 'available for sale' or “fair value through profit and loss' equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator
that the securities are impaired. Impairment loss on investment is recognised in the profit and loss
whenever the acquisition cost of investment exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised on equity securities in the profit and loss are not reversed subsequently in profit and loss.

Non financial assels

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there Is any Indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in
usa and its falr value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
genaerates cash Inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit, or CGU").

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss accounL.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extant that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carmying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impalirment loss had been recognised.

Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfars the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in

accordance with International Accounting Standard 39: Financial Instruments; Recognition and
Measurements.
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A financial liabllity is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assels and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the nel amount is reported in the financial statements
only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to reallse the assets and fo settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

Property and aquipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impalment losses.

Cost includes expanditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
salf-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direc! labour, any other cost directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the cost of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalized borrowing
costs.

If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Subsequent expendifung

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the fulure economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. The carrying amount of the part so replaced is
derecognized. The costs relating to day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in
profit and loss account as Incurred.

Depreclation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of property and equipment less their estimated residual values using
the straight-line method over their useful lives and is recognised in profit and loss account. Depreciation
on additions to property and equipment is charged from the date asset is available for use, till the date of
Its disposal. The estimated useful lives of property and egquipment for cument and comparative periods
are disclosed In note 4 to these financlal statements.

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposal

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the profit and loss
account.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable
to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Annual Report 2018 | 30




34

3.5

A NEXT CAPITAL

This is stated at cost less impairment, if any. The camying amount is reviewed at each balance sheet
date to assess whether it Is In excess of its recoverable amount, and where the carmying value exceeds
estimated recoverable amount, it Is writtan down to its estimated recoverable amount.

Trading Right Enliflement Cerlificate (TREC)

Software

Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase costs
of software and other directly attributable costs of preparing the software for its intended use,

Computer software is measured initially at cost and subsegquently stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impaiment losses, if any.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, instead they are systematically tested
for impairment at each balance sheet date. Intanglible assets with finite useful lives are amortised at
straight line basis over the useful life of the asset at the rate specified in note 5 to these financial
statements.

Taxatlon

Income lax expense comprises cument and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit
and loss account except to the extent that it relates to e recognized directly in other comprehensive
incoma in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on laxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates
of taxation after taking into account available tax credits and rebatas, if any. The charge for curment tax
includes adjustments to charge for pricr years which arises from assessmants [ developments made
during the year, if any.

Dafarred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilties for financial reporting purposes and the amaunts used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlernent or the carrying amount of assets and liabiliies, using the enacted or substantively

enacted rates or taxation.

The Company recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the
foreseeable future will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost less impairment losses, if any. A provision for impairment in trade and other receivables is made
when there is objective evidence that the Company will not ba able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. Trade debts and other receivables considerad imecoverable are
written off.
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A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it Is probable that an outflow of economic
banefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditura
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Provislons

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability s disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past
evants, whose existance will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-cccurrence, of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a prasent
legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised [nitially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Revenue recognition

- Brokerage, commission, corporate finance incomea and other income are recognised as and when
such services are provided.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to recelve the dividend Is established.

- Income on continuous funding system transactions and bank deposis is recognised on a time
proportionate basls that takes Into account the effective yield,

- Mark-up income from investment in marginal financing system is calculated on outstanding balance
at agreed rates and recorded in profit and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred, except to the
extent that they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset (l.e. an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) in
which case these are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Forelgn currency translation

Moneatary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions In forelgn currencles are converted into
rupeas at the rales of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken
to profit and loss account.

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share (EPS) for ts shareholders. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS s determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary sharas outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary sharas, if any.
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Dividand distributions and appropriaions are recorded in the perlad in which the distribuions and appropriabions are approved.
314 Cash and cash squivalents

313 Dividend distributions and appropriations

Cash and cash squivalents comprisa cash balances and bank deposits. Running finance undar mark-up arrangements that are

rapayabie en demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a componant of cash and cash
equivalent for the purpose of the statement of cash fows.

4, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

30 Juna 2018
Leasehold Furniture Vehlcles Computers Total
Improvements and fhxtures {owned) {leased) and related
accissoriss
(Rupees)
As at 30 June 2018
Cost TAIT 348 7716318 14,049,600 - 19,202,571 48,475,837
Accumulaied depreciation 708,774 - U 11
Mat book valua 2523112 4,006,544 5,025,684 - 4,809,022 18,365,032
Additions during the year - - 2,830,620 - 854,480 3,784.135
Depraciation change for
the year (73585)  (T84.321) (1,671,303) - (2143848) _ (5783,088)
Mat book valus 550,18 3,212,223 5,804,030 3619.660 14376100
Aa at 30 June 2018
Cost TAIT 348 7,76318 16,880,238 - 20,247,087 62,260,972
Accumulated depreciation (5,767,161} (4,504.095)  (10,995,208) - (16,627,308) _ (37 893863)
Met book value B50.18 3,212 293 5,804, 030 - 3619.668 14376109
Depreciation rates % per annum 20 10 20 20 20-33.33
30 Jung 20107
Leasahod Fumiture Vahicles Computers Total
improvements  and fiduras {owmned) (leasad) and related
accessorias
(Rupoes)
As at 30 Juna 2017
Cost 7,275,348 B,785273 11382100 . 15,650,586 41,083,307
Accumulated depraciation (3,873,605} (2,684 685) (7 299,683) - (12 645477) _ (26503 470)
Mot book value 3,301,743 3,800,578 4082407 - 3,005,108 14,189,837
Additions during the year 142,000 531,045 2,657,500 - 3,841,885 7,582,630
Cepreciation charge for
the year (818,871) (725078)  (1,724.213) - (1,838,072} {5,207,335)
Net book velue — 257772 6006544 502560 - 4509022 _ 16365032
As gt 30 June 2017
Cost 7417348 TTIE31E 14,048,600 - 19,292,571 48,475,837
Accumulated depreciation (4,893,576) (2.709,774)  (9,023,806) - (14.483,549) _ (32,110,805)
Net book value —25B772 4008544 5025684 - 480002 _ 16385032
Crepreciation rales % per annum 20 10 20 20 20-33.33
41  The costof fully depreciated assels as at 30 June 2018 Is Rs. 18.02 million (2017: Ra. 16.410 milllon).
42 Al immovable assets are sfuated at Head office in Karachi and branch offices in Lahom.
5. INTAMGIBLE ASSETS Note 30 Juna 30 Jure
2018 207
(Rupaea)
Pakistan Marcantia Exchange - mambearship cand 850,000 50,000
Trading Righl Entitlement Centificate (TREC} 5T&52 2,500,000 5,000,000
Saftwarg 53 B18,746 1,408,911

—S2m8748 135691
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51 This represents TREC acquired on surender of Stock Exchange Membership Card. For details please refer
MNote 6.

PSX vide notice no, PSX/N- 5372, dated 15 September 2017, has maintained the notional value of TRE
Cerlificate at Rs. 2.5 million. According to the Stock Exchange (Corporatisation, Demutualization and
Integration) Act 2012, the TRE Certificate may only be transferred once to a company intending to camy out
gshares brokerage business in the manner to be prescribed. Upto 31 December 2018, the Stock Exchange
shall offer for issuance, 15 TRE Cerlificates each year in the manner prescribed. After 2015, no restriction
ghall be placed on issuance of TRE Cerdificates, The Company has marked lien on TRE certificate in favour
of the Pakistan Slock Exchange Limited (PSX) o fulfil the requirement of Base Minimum Capital.

52 Movement in Trading Right Entitiemnent Certificate (TREC) Nota 30 Juna 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupeas)
Opening Carrying value 5,000,000 19,926,170
Impalrment recognised during the year 521 (2,500,000) {14,926,170)
Closing camying value 2500000 ___ 5.000,000

521 During the year the Company has measurad the TREC on its notional value of Rs. 2.5 million as per the PSX
vide notica no. PSX/N- 7178, dated 10 November 2017,

53 Software Note 30 Juna 30 June
2018 2017
Net earrying value basis (Rupess)
Opening net book value 1,408,911 758,548
Additions 165,000 1,135,000
Amortisation charge (753,185) {48E,637)
Closing net book value 818,748 1,406,911
Gross camying valve
Cost 5,103,680 4,938,660
Accumulated amortisation (4,284 814) (3,531,748)
Met book value 818,748 1,406,811
Amortisation rate 3% 33%
6. INVESTMENT IN SHARES OF PAKISTAN STOCK EXCHANGE
LIMITED —nB58322 41163842
30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Number of Shares)
1,602,853 4,007,383 Opening balance 16,020,530 40,073,830
- (1,602,853) Sold to strategic Investor {40% sharas) - {16,028,530)
- (801,477) Sold to general public (20% shares) - (8,014,770)

Closing balance represents 40% shares

1,602,853 1,602,853 (2017: 40% shares) ** -4 16,029 530 16,029,530

= Markel! valve basls

Book value as of 30 June 2018 16,028,530
Unrealized gain as of 30 June 2018 15,628,782
Market value as of 30 June 2018 _EH.ESEM
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These shares wers listed on PSX In the month of June 2017. Therefore, the same were carried at the
market value. At 30 June 2018, the outstanding 40% shares are classified as "Freeze" in the COC
report of the company.

This represents shares of PSX acquired in pursuance of corporatization and demulualization of PSX as
a public company limited by shares. As per the arrangements the authorized and paid-up capital of
PSX is Rs. 10,000,000,000 and Rs. 8,014,766,000 respectively with a par value of Rs. 10 each. The
pald-up capital of PSX is egually distributed among 200 members (termed as “initial shareholders® of
the exchange after corporatization) of PSX by issuance of 4,007,383 shares to each initial shareholder
in the following manner:

1. 40% of the total shares allotted (i.e. 1,602,953 shares) were transferred in the House Account -
CDC of each initial shareholder.

2. 60% of the total shares (i.e. 2,404,430 shares) have been deposited in a sub-account In
Company’s name under PSX's participant ID with CDC which will remain blocked until they are
divested to strategic investor(s}, general public and financial institutions.

The above shares and TRE Certificate were received against surrender of Stock Exchange
Membership Card. Initiaily the fair value of both the asset transferred and asset obtained could not be
determined with reasonable accuracy, the above investment had been recorded at the camrying value
of Stock Exchange Membership Card in Company’s books. The par value of shares received by the
Company had been recognised as available for sale investment and the excess of value of shares
over the carrying value of membership card was recognised as trading right. Mo gain or loss had been
recorded on the exchange.

In 2016, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) accorded its approval to
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) for issuing letter of acceptance to a Chinese Consortium for
the strategic sale of 40% of shares against a consideration of $85.6 million at an offer price of Rs.

28 par share.

PEX vide their letter dated 22 December 2016 informed the Company that 40% (1,602,953 shares),
which were held in blocked form in lerms of Stock Exchanges (Corporatization, Demutualization and
Integration) Act 2012, have been sold to Chinese consortium by the Divestment Committee at an offer
price of Rs. 28 per share. Subsequently, a formal signing ceremony was held on 20 January 2017 to
mark the signing of the Share Purchase Agreement between the Chinese Consortium and the equity
sale committee of PSX. The sale was completed on 10 March 2017.

As per the above mentioned letter, 10% of the consideration amount was retained for a pericd of one
year o settle any cutstanding liabilities of PSX and as such the portion of sale after deduction, if any,
will be remitted to the designated bank account maintained by the Company after the expiry of the
specified time period. Accordingly, the Company has received entire sale proceeds for said
1,602,953 shares.

After divestment of 40% equity stake of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited in favor of Chinese
Consortium, PSX vide thelr letter dated 06 June 2017 informed the Company for divestment of further
20% of PSX shares upon successful completion of book building process. This amount was secured
by a bank guarantee taken from MCB Bank.

The Company has pledged the shares with PSX to fulfil the requirement of Base Minimum Capital.
For detalls, refer note 34,
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LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Pakistan Stock Exchangs Limitad

Ceantral Deposiiory Company of Pakistan Limited
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
Pakistan Mercantils Exchange

Sacurity deposit against office premises
Security deposit against PS0 card

I! NEXT CAPITAL

MNote 30 June 30 Juna
2018 2047
(Rupeas)
Fa ) 5,425,000 21,035,829
125,000 125,000
1,300,000 1,300,000
r2 1,250,000 1,250,000
1,841,200 838,200
120,000 120,000

70061200 24870029

This includes deposits placed with Pakistan Stock Exchange LimHted for taking exposures Iin regular, future markel and cash deposited
against BMC requirement, during the curment year, the company deposited Ra. 5 million for the requirement of BMC,

This represant deposits placad with Pakistan Mercantls Exchangs for laking exposures in commodity markeat.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net
Deductinle / (nxable) temporary diffarance arsing In respect of.

Accelerated depreciation | amortisation (339,248) {1,503,918)
LiabiSty against assel subject lo finance lease - 14427
Camy forwand lossas 1,648,701 2,258,371
Unrealised loss on investmant 84,181 417,600
ar
Raconcillation of defarred tax
Balanco as &l Rocognised in Rocognised Balanco ss sl Rocognised in Rocognised in Balanco as at
0 July 2018 profit and Inpquity 30 June 2047 profit and loss quity 30 June 2048
loas account nccount
(Rupees)
Dofocred tax assal avising due lo:
Accolombed tux depredation /
arnortzaton (4837,706)  3437ET - (1.503.918) 1,164,871 - (¥38,248)
LLiabiity against nssel subjoct
io finances lsase 14427 . - 14,427 (14,427} - -
Unializad loas on imaatrmnt - A17,600 - 17,800 [3Z3,4089) - 18
Canry forward losses 22232269 (19.975,898) - 2,256,371 {609 ,570) . 1,546,701
L0860 (1812651 - ___ITBAATS ___Z7,fES . Lasiss
SHORT TERM INVESTMENT CLASSIFIED AS "AT FAIR VALUE Node 30 June 30 Juna
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS' 2018 a7
(Rupees)
Listad shares a1 _12004500 _ 15408000
Listod shares
30 June 30 Juna 3 Juno 30 June
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Mumber of shares) Hame of Investes Carrying Market Market
emount valus valus
(Rupess)
BO0,000 600,000 Pakistan Stock Exchangs Limited 12467246 11,850,000 15,408,000
3,000 Mesazan Bank Lim#ed 285187 224 500 -
Unrealized loss on remeasuremant of investment
ciassiied as ‘ot fair value through profit or loss
account’ (B27 043} - =
el SOEE00__ISOSE000, 12203000,

INVESTMENT IN MARGINAL FINANCING SYSTEM

This amount is given as & Margin Financing (MF) to our clents through National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited, This amount
Is secured against securitios of clients held in House accounts under pladged status, The Comparny i financing on Financing
Participation Ratio (FPR) of maximum 75% and charging mark-up upto the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 8%.
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Note 30 June 30 Juna
2018 2017
(Rupeas)
Investment in MF at beginning of the year 4274 411 -
Total placements during the year 258,841,980 1,927,247, 793
Total release against MF during the year (201,150,385) (1,928,966,045)
Realisad income on MF 1,308,553 6,966,434
Unraalised income on MF 1,841 26,228
(167,999 308) {1.922,973,382)
Balance at end of the year —al 082 4.274.411
TRADE DEBTS
Recealvable from clients on account of:
- Purchase of shares on behalf of clienls 11.2& 11.3 113,685,850 379,923,978
= Brokerage commission
- Equity sharas 11,082,634 15,237,971
- Money market and forex 2825438 2,279,771
= Consultancy fee 8,454,783 31,367,298
136,048,515 428,809,018
- Pravision for doubtful debts 71.7 (2,084 838) -

132823878, 428808018
Provislon for doubtful debts

Opaning balance - >
Provislon for doubtful debts 2,084 638 -
— 2084639

Clasing balance B
This includas trade debts of Ra. Nil {30 Junsa 2017: Rs. 0.330 milion) receivable from relatad partias.
Aging analysis

The aging analysis of the trade debts relating to purchase of shares Is as follows:

Note Amount Custody value

(Rupees)
Upto five days 714 111,860,238 171,221,928
Mare than five days 114 1,725312 376,002,223

—113635050 ___3543.124.149
Thesa custody values are shown at market value after applying haircut of straight 15%.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Note 30 June 30 Juna
2018 2097
(Rupees)

Daposit against exposura margin 21 218,053,084 242,320,010
Deposit against Marginal Trading Services 122 B,677.048 24,804,190
Security deposits 2.3 1,128,679 1,128,679
Prepaild axpanses 3,338,818 4,473,542
Sales tax recelvables 714,004 3,499,163
Intarast recelvable against bank deposits 1,045,120 1,163,080
Recelvable from PSX against disposal of shares 83 - 4,488,268
Mobllization Advance 124

— 5400000 -
—238356829 281876933
This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposure margin

in respect of trade In future and ready market. These deposits carry profit at rates ranging from 2.75% to
3.80% (30 June 2017 2.75% to 3.1%) per annum.
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This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposura margin against
trade and sustained losses fo date on Marginal Trading Services. These deposits carmy profit at rates ranging from
2.75% to 3.60% (30 June 2017; 2.75% to 3.1%) per annum.

This includes security deposit against leased asset of Rs. 0.347 million and a client's IFO of Rs, 0.718 million,

The amount has been pald to a contractor for renovation of new business office of the Company.

ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Nota 30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Considared good

Advance agalnst salary - securad 176,081 308,237

Other recaivables and advances - unsecund 4,240,184 2,046,131
4418,225 2,352,368

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Balances with banks:

Saving accounts - profit and loss account 14.7& 742 114,824 BOT 200,698,032

Cument accounts - convenlional 12,081,835 68,873,156

Current accounts - shariah compliant 74,111 74,732

126,980,853 268,043,920

Cash in hand 3,000 26,137

126,983,853 288,670,057

Profit rate on saving accounts ranges from 3.75% to 4.60% per annum (30 June 2017: 3.75% to 4.1% per annum).

This include Rs. 112.859 milllon (30 June 2017: Rs. 184.503 million) kept in designated bank accounts maintalned
on behall of cliants,

AUTHORISED, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
lssued, subscribed and pald-up capital

Ordinary shares of Re. 10 each fully paid In cash 151 450,000,000 200,000,000
lssua of right shares - 250,000,000
50,000,000 450,000,000

Pattern of shareholding
Categories of Sharsholdors Rumber of %ol Number of Numberof  Humber of shares % of shares

sharos held sa  sharss sharos shares sold hold 8a on 30

at 1 July, 2017 purchassd  during the June, 2018

period

Companies
= MCE Bank Limitad - Troasury o, 360,500 B8N - = 4,360,600 BET
=Mapie Leal Coment Factory Limied 3375,000 T.50% - = 3,375,000 T.50%
- Abbns Corpornticn (Pyvl) LimEed 504,000 1.11% - - 500,000 111%
Indiviciunks
= Mir, Muhammad Nejprm All 12,308 250 T A% - = 12,388,250 T AT
= Mir, Arif Habib 2,500,000 BA44% - 5,000 2,865,000 BaAXN
= Mir. Snosh Tahir 3,575,000 THa% T5,000 - 4 325,000 BA
= Mr. Muhammad Ahmad Khan Maiic 2,017,500 4.49% - 183,000 1,834,500 4.08%
= Mr. Adnan Afridl 4,500,000 10.00%: BE1,000 425,000 4,838,000 10.87T%
= Qthor indhvidunia 11,403,750 25 4% - B84,000 10,405,750 A%

TTAE000000  100.0% 45,000,000 100.0%
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees)
Trade creditors 718.1T& 182 110,177,587 199,054,122
Payable to National Clearing Company of
Pakistan Limited 96,487,659 237,848,781
Accrued commission to traders 78.3 2,200,544 7,112,339
Accrued salaries and other expenses 268,803 4,714,430
Auditor's remunaration 800,000 785,000
Tax deducted at source 2,503,163 10,114,940
Provision for sales tax - 2,560,063
Pravision for worker's welfare fund - 1,522,778
Commission payable 18.4 7,717,309 82,310,810
Accrued Expenses 1,185,479 73,070
Accrued Markup 1,216,451 -
Other payables 1,039,360 333,116
—223006.200 546420430
18.1  This includes trade payable of Rs. 0.151 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 26.124 milllon) payable to
ralated parties.

18.2  This includes Rs. 8.35 million trade payable in respect of two days trading with T+2 settlement.

18.3 This includes commission payable of Rs. 0.213 million (30 Juna 2017: Rs. 4.062 million) to related
parties.

18.4  This represents commission payable to a foreign brokerage house.
18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

19.1  The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an Order for recovery of Sindh salas tax on advisory
sarvices amounting to Rs. 871,581 for the tax period July 2011 to June 2012. The Company filed
appeal before the Commissioner Appeals (SRB) against the said order. The Commissioner Appeals
{SRB) passed the final order dated 21 November 2014 for recovery of assessed amount Rs.
871,581 and default surcharge to be calculated at the time of payment.

The Company filed the petition against the order to the Honourable High Court of Sindh ("The Court™)
and the Court granted an interim order dated 28 November 2014 and restrained the SRE from
demanding any payment till further orders by the Court. The Court via its order dated 28 August
2015 disposed off the said petition and directed the Company to pursue the appeal before the
SRB-Tribunal.

The management is of the view that such services were not taxable under the Sindh Sales Tax Act,
2011 and the Company was duly paying Sindh Sales Tax on brokerage services and filing Sindh
Sales Tax accordingly. The Company is confident of a favourable cutcome of the same, therefore,
no provision has been made In this regard.

18.2 Commitments

For sale of quoted securities under fulure contracts against
counter commitments 320,177,215 4|223 000

For purchase of quoted securities under future contracts
against counter commitments = 200,844,325 55,547 935

18.2.1 The Company have unavailed running finance facilities with Sindh Bank Limited and MCB Bank Limited
amounting to Rs. 250 million and Rs. 400 million respectively, which carry markup at the rate of
3 months KIBOR plus 3.5% and 1 month KIBOR plus 1.50% and will mature on 30 June 2019 and 31
March 2019 respectively.
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Note 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
{Rupees)

2014202 201,288,112 281,830,873
88,248,748 117,852,669

2 825 000 -
272 461,851 359,663,542
31,345,170 45,881,283

241116801 _ 353702249

107,731,224 155,021,991
70,488 344 84 385,861

—iI5210.008 240407808

This inciudes brokerage eamed from related parties amounting to Ra. 3.225 million (30 June 2017 Rs. 3.966 millon).

CAPITAL GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS

Gain on sale of PSX shares
Gain / (loss) on sale of other companies shares

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benofits
Consultancy fea

Sub-undenwriting commission
Commission and referral fea
Service and transaction charges
Fees and subscription

= 43,278,740
2,845 962 (B47,452)
1~ IR T .

52,783,934 42,835,080

221 18,033,314 12,818,201
222 13,297,962 36,888,000
223 32,688,087 36,325,783
17,569,605 18,986,687

9,184,644 7,907,304

—lALORLEEE. 120000 00

This Includes consultancy fea 1o the Directors of the Company amounting to Rs. 5.083 million (30 June 2017: Ra.

6.158 million).

This sxpense was paid as per undenwriting agresment sntered with several parties for the underwriting of sharas,
This includes commission to the Directors of the Company amounting to Rs. 20.703 million (30 Juna 2017T: Rs. 22,082

millilon).
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Telephone and communication charges
Rent rates and taxes

Utility charges

Vehicle running expenzes
Daproclation

Amaortisation

Legal and professional changes
Insurance

Printing, staticnery and postage charges
Office supplies

Oifice repalr and malntenance

Feas and subscription

Travelling and entertainment charges
Advertisement axpanses

Auditor's remunaration

Workers® Welfare Fund

Security

Frovision against recelvables
Recolvables written-off

Right lzsuance expense
Miscellaneous

231 40,388,028 36,063,484
4,418,016 4338010
17,451,068 12,015,270
2,321,543 2,132,930
2,521,551 1,717,164
4 5,783,058 5,207,335
£3 753,185 486,637
1,339,560 437,750
1,558 444 1,218,615
1,212,485 1,783,522
830,184 982,631
2,432,611 2,118,114
1,881,182 2,852,517
5,577,683 4,085,364
444, 266 517,040
232 1,613,825 1,635,000
. 1,032,248
2,482 B35 2,307,118
2,084,639 -
1,000,000 62,148
801,790

2,473,379 1,486,079
—PASIT.S, ___BAN67.660
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This includes remuneration to Chlef Executive Officer amounting to Rs. 9.0 million (30 June 2017: Rs.
9.0 million).

Auditors' remuneration Note 30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Audit fee 300,000 300,000

Half yearly review 150,000 150,000

Other services / certifications 865,000 860,000

Out of pocket expenses 158,825 325,000
1,613,825 1,635,000

FINANCE COST

Mark up charges 24.7 11,024,308 26,601,022

Bank charges 5,472,830 3,540,837

16,487,139 30,141,858

This includes Rs. 5.022 million (30 June 2017: Rs.17.935 million) paid to related parties.

OTHER INCOME

Mark-up / interest on:

- Bank balances - profit and loss account 11,069,776 15,363,137
- Investment in marginal financing syslem 3,151,056 7,503,604
Profit on exposure margin 5,420,324 5,397,889
Dividend income 506,803 414,564
Others 318,859 828,402

20,466,818 29,507,586

TAXATION

Relationship between income tax expense and

accounting profit

Profit before taxation 4,769,182 139,960,293
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30% {30 June 2017: 31%) 1,430,755 43,387,691
Effect of income subject to final tax regime 23,673,185 (14,083,811)
Tax effect of change in tax rates - (558,355)
Tax effect of amount relating to prior year (2,331,984) -
Tax effect of minimum tax and altemate corporate tax (ACT) 7332914 8,343,552
Others (79,821)

30,104,870 36,999,256
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The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensures
that the sufficiant provision for the purposes of taxation is available which can be analysed as follows:

2017 2018 2015
(Rupees)
Income tax provision for the
year (as per accounts) 20,874,745 7,454,188 3,544 664
Income tax as per tax
refumn / assessment 18,542,761 7,546,165 4,849.470

The difference mainly pertains to cost allocation between NTR and FTR income in the tax provisions
booked in financial statements and filed in refurns in respective years.

The income tax retumns of the Company have been filed up to tax year 2017 under the Universal Self
Assessment Scheme. This scheme provides that the return filed is deemed to be an assessment order.
The returns may be selected for audit within five years. The Income Tax Commissioner may amend
assessment if any objection is raised during audit.

Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the Assistant
Commissioner Inland Revenue In respect of monltoring of withholding of taxes for the tax year 2018 on
account of short deduction of tax on payments made by the Company amounting to Rs. 0.10 million.

Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the
Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue in respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax
year 2011 on account of short deduction of tax on payments made by the Company amounting to Rs.
0.876 million. Against the said order the company has preferred an appeal before the Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) under section 127 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001. The case has been
heard, howaver, the decision in appeal is still pending.

QOrder for amendment in assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has
been passed by the tax authorities for the tax year 2011 on the basls that the tax deduction under
section 153(1)(b) of the Ordinance was minimum tax, therefore, no refund is allowable to the Company
creating tax demand of Rs. 26,698. The Company has preferred an appeal before the Commisionar
Inland Revenue ( Appeals ) under section 127 of Income Tax Crdinance, 2001, where hearing in appeal
is pending.

(LOSS)/ EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)

{Loss) [ profit for the year (25,335 688) 102,961,037
(Number)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 45 000,000 37,033,424
(Rupees)

{Loss) / eamings per share - basic and diluted (0.56) 278
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Diluted samings par shars has nol bean prasanted as the Company has not issusd any instrument which would have an impact
on eamings per share when exorcised,

The Company with the approval of sharehciders by way of special resolution in general moeting held on 12 September 2011 has
enlaned inlo a Stock Option Agreement dated Tth October, 2011 with tha Chisf Executive (CEQ), wheraby the CEQ has been
granted Options to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company. |ssuance of shames by the Company against worciss of
the Options ks, howevor, subject to the approval of the Securitios & Exchange Commission of Pakistan {the Commission) under
saction 83 of Companies Act 2017 (previously section 88 of Compankes Ordinance, 1884). Tha numbaer of sham options granted
anmn up io 2 million shares with considemmtion in cagh having an exoercise price of Rs. 10 per share, The axprcize pariod is five
yoars and six months after one yeer from the date of listing of the Comparny.

SECPF vide order no. CSOVCIR2017-528 dalad 15th May, 2017 has dissegarded the application for appmval. The Company filed
an appeal an 16th June, 2017 against the order under section 33 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act,
1887,

During the yaar, the Appeliate Banch of SECP vide latter no. 48(33)8-NCSONT dated 26th Saptember 2017 has passed an
order whereby the impugned onder has been sel aside and the appeal of the Cempany has besn sllowed regarding the grant of
sham options to the CEQ bazed on special resolution passed by the shareholdens In ganoral meating held on 13 Septembar 2011.
Az the vesting condition attached 1o thia oplion has been fulfiled and the objection placed by SECP vide impugned order has
been remaoved, the shar oplion can be axorcised by the CED till the axpiry data of 25 October 2018,

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Ralated parties comprise of assoclated companies, directors, key management parsonnal and close family members of the
dirsctors. Transactions with related parties may be camed out at negotiated mies, Remuneration and benalis to ecscutives of
the Company o In accordance with the terms of thelr employment.

Transactions with related parties ars antered into at ates negotiated with them. Detalls of transactions and badances with
rolgted parties, other than those which have been specifically claclosed elsewhaens in this finsncial statemnan? ars as follows:

Directora 30 Juna 30 Juna

208 2017
(Rupods)

Short term loan from related pariles

Cpening balance 47,185,738 33373877

Received during the year 541,083,358 713,827 228

Transfor from long term koans - 50,624,882

Repaymants during the year __[546,993,087) _ (750,740,048)

Ciosing balance 41286011 __ 47185738

Interast on short term loan

Interest accrued during the year 5,021,760 8,232413

Intarast pakd during the yoar (5,021,780) {8,232 413)

Long term loan from related parties

Opening balance - 92,211,634

Recalved during the yaar - 47,630,195

Transfor to short term kbans a (50,624, 882)

Repayments during the year - (89,216,847}

Closing balanos - =

Intereat on long term loan

Interest accrued during the year - 8,702,282

Interest pald during the yoar - (B,702,282)

The loans obtained from related paries amounting to Rs, 541,063 million (30 June 2017: Rs, 784,552 million) out of which Rs,
546,954 milon (30 June 2017: Rs. 750,740 millien) was repald during the year and Rs. 41,256 millon (30 June 2017: Re. 47,185
milion) is outstanding at year and. Thess loans carry mark-up rale 11.26% to 11.92% (30 June 2017: 11.20% lo 11.28%) par
annum. These loans wore oblained to meet the working capital requirements of the Comparny.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including cartaln bensfits 10 the chief axecutive,
directors and executives of the Company | es folbows:

Diractors
30 Juno 30 Juni 30 June 30 Juna 3 June 30 Juna
20ris 2017 018 207 2018 2017
{Rupoes)
Managerial rermuneration 8,000,000 8,000,000 #0088, 66T 10,000,000 28,337 608 20,713,111
Heuse ot aliowance 2,400,000 2,400,000 1,628, 88T 4,000,000 11,335,044 B,285.244
Medical 500,000 600,000 406 85T 1,000,000 2833781 207131
Commission - - 23,567, TEY 2,062,119 B2T42TE -
Contutancy Tos - - 8,083 214 8,150,001 - -
Diirmelons’ faes - - - - - -
2000000 8000000 . SEOSORSS 4901210 SOJ0690 31059656

Nurmibsr of Porsons 1 i 3 3 20 15
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Th chiof executive and cortain axecutives of the Company have been provided with free use of Company’s maintained cars
as per thelr terms of employment.

Commission and consultancy fees Includes amount pakd to non-ecoecutive directors of the Company, amounting Rs. 20,195
milicn (30 June 2017 Re. 21.861 million) and Rs. 6.083 milon (2017: Rs. 6.159 milion), respectvely,

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per Companies Act, 2017,
No fees is pald to directors for meetings attended by them.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Tha Company's activities sxpose it to a varety of financial risks: credit dak, liquidity dak and market rizk including curmency
risk, interest rate rak and price rzk). The Company's overall sk managemant policy focuses on the unprediclabiity of financial
marketz and seeks lo minimize polential adverss effects on the Company’s Minancial pedormance.

Rizk management framework

Tha Board of Direclors of the Company has an overall responsiblity for the establizhmenl and ovarsight of the Company’s risk
managesment framework. The Board ks akso responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's fsk managemaent
policios.

This Company’s risk managemont policies are ostablishod to identify and analyse the fsks faced by the Company, to sot
appropriate rsk limits and contrels, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policles and systoms are
raviewed regulady to refiect changes in markat conditions and the Company’s activities.

Crodit risk

Credit risk |5 the rsk that one party to a financlal Instrumant will fall to discharge an obligation and causa the other party to Incur
a financial less, without taking into account the falr value of any collateral, Crodit risk anses from the Inabilty of the Bsuers of
the instruments, the relevant financial institutions or counter parties in case of placements or other arangements Lo fullil their
ebligations. Thens s a posaibility of default by participants and of falluse of the financial markets, the deposilodas, the
setemonts of clearng system ate,

Exposure lo crodl sk

Cradit risk of the Company adses principalty fram its trade dabts, long term deposits, advances, deposits and other recebvablas
and bank balances. Tha camying amount of thess financial assels represants the madmum credil axposune.

Cradhi rak managemeant

To recuce the exposuns to credit risk, the Company has developed its own risk management policies and guidelines whereby
clients are provided trading limits according to their worth and proper margine ane collected from and maintained by the cllents,
Tha managsment continuously menitors the credit exposure towards the clients and makes provision against those balances
considaned doubtiul for recovery,

The Company’s policy is o enter into financial contracts in accordance with the intemal sk management policles and
Imvestment and cporational guidalinos.

All transactions in Ested securitios are setfed using National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited, baing the contral clearing
company of the country. The sk of default in such transactions Is consldered minimal, as deltvary of securities Is guaranteed
by the stock exchange., The Company does not expect o incur material credit losses on its financlal assets.

T macdmurm axposurne o credit sk before any credit enhancements at 30 June 2018 is the camying amount of the financial
asasls As sol cut balow:

Mota 30 June 30 June
gl | 2017
(Rupaca)
Long term deposits ke 10,081,200 24,670,029
Irvestment in marginal financing system i 85,217,082 4,274 411
Trade debls 71 133,953,878 428,808,018
Advances 3 178,081 06, 237
Daposits 121, 1228 123 227,858, TED 288,252 879
Other recetvables 2 4.5“,184 6,534,389
Cash and bank balances 4 260,643,520
M 002,490,883
Secured H,m..‘lﬂ 4,580,645
Unsacured 80T, 810,245

MM
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30.1.1 The aging for trade debltors and other receivables at the balanca sheet date s as follows:

2018 2017
Gross Impairment Gross Impairmant
(Rupees) (Rupoos)

Mot past due 121,382 868 - 354 841,558 -
Past due 15 - 30 days 327710 - 3,288,570 -
Past due 31 days - 180 days 4,624 456 - 26,274,846 -
Past due 181 days - 365 days 4,050,814 3,863,768 -
More than 365 days 2,782 630 gg 440,275 -
130048510 2094099 _ 428800018 :

Except for the impaiment disclosed above, no impairmant has been recognized In respect of these recetvables as the securlty
against the same is adequate. The Company is doing its utmost 1o recover the amount from the doubiful cllents and is confident
that majority of the amount would be recovered basad on the past experience and the recovery efforts being camied out by the
Company.

Credit rating and collaterals

Bank balances are only hald with reputable banks having sound cradit ralings. The credit quality of the Company's bank
balances can be assessed with reference of exdemal credil ratings as follows:

Rating Shorl term Long term 30 Juns 2018
Agency rating rating (Rupeas) (%)
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ BAAA 121,824,134 96%
Habib Metropolitan Bank LimHed PACRA Al Al 3627116 %
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al A+ 1,132,356 1%
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Ast+ 203,792 0%
Meezan Bank Limited JCRVIE A1+ AR 74,111 0%
Habiy Bank Limied JCRVIS Al Aan 60,084 0%
J5 Bank Limited PACRA A+ Abe 53,444 0%
Askarl Bank PACRA A-i+ Al+ 3,814 0%
Sindh Bank JCR-VIE A+ AR 1818 0%
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A+ AA 103 0%
__ 126,880,853 100%
Rating Short term Long term 30 June 2017
Agency rating rating {Rupees) (%)
MCE Bank Limited PACRA Al AAA 288,517,200 100%
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Ael+ AR 552 222 0%
Tha Bank of Punjab PACRA A1+ AA 262,282 0%
Habiy Metropolitan Bank Limied PACRA A+ Ads 204,974 0%
Meazan Bank Limited JCRVIS A+ AR 74,732 0%
J3 Bark Limited PACRA A1+ AA- 38,593 0%
Askar Bank PACRA Ast+ AbF 3814 0%
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AR 103 0%
280,643,920 100%

Conceniration of cradlt sk

Concantration of credit sk exists when changes in econamic of industry factors similarty affect groups of counterparties
whosa aggregate credit exposure is glgnificant In relation to the Company's total credit exposura. The Company's portialio of
financial instruments is diversified and transactions ane entered into with credit-worthy counterparties of diverse naturas
thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of cred risk.

302 Liguidiy risk
Liquidity risk ks the risk that the Comparny will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obigations as thay fall due. Liquidity

risk arises becausa of the pessiility that the Company could be required to pay its liablities earfier than expeciad or difficulty in
raising funds to meet commitments assoclated with financial Habiities as they fall due.

Annual Report 2018 | 46




I! NEXT CAPITAL
Liquldity rlsk managemant

Predand liquidity sk managamant implies maintaining sufficlent cagh and markeiabie securities, the avalabiity of commitied
crodil feclities and the sbility to close oul market positions dus o the dynamic nature of the business. The Company’s treasury
aims at maintaining faxdbdity In funding by keeping committed cred lines avallable. Tha following are the contractual
maturities of financlal [Eabilties, including interost payments:

20 June 2018
Carrying Contractual Losa than Ugto Cno Twa
amaunt cash flows nlx ane o two to fiva
manths yoar yoars Yoars
(Rupses)
Liabiity against assat
sublect 1o Fnance leass .. a = 5 S -
Untinirad didond 3,051,638 (3,061,638) (3,051,838}
Shor teern loans from
rplated porties - unsocured 41,250,011 (41, 258.011) - {41,258,011) - -
Short term loan - unsecured 18,953,742 (18,953, 742) - (18,853,743) = =
Trade and cther payabies  ___ 223,606,255 —(223,008,255) - - .
iDL MOS0 LELIATORN. el e = =
30 Jine 2017
Maturithon
Carrying Contractiad Lews than Upio One T
amount cash ficws s one o bwo o fve
manths T yERE YRS
(Rupses}
Linkdity mgniret aseel
subject 1o financo loase 48,000 (48,080) - {48,000) -
Short inern lpang from
reladed parties - unsocured 47,185,739 {47,185, 735) - (47, 185.708) -
Short term loan - unsecured 80,074,588 {60,074, 888) {BG-O?-‘.NB} =

Trace and other payabies  __S4BA20450 __(BASAZ0AS0) __(545420450)
70000 (650,700.207) —(540.420450) —(IOTS0AATTT

On the balance sheel date, the Company has caah and bank balonces of Rs, 126,984 millon (2017: Rs. 269,870 millon) as
menticned in nole 14,

CH R

Market riak

Markat risk s tha risk that the vaiue of the financial instrument may fluctuato as a result of changes in market Interest rates
of tho market price dus to a changa in credit rating of the Issuar or the Instrumaent, change in market sontimonts, spoculativo
activites, supply and demand of securities and llquidity In the market

Markef risk compsizes of thres types of fsk: currency riak, Interest rate fak and price rak.
Market rigk managemsant

The Company manages markel fak by monitoring exposure on markelable securtties by following the internal dak management
and imvestment policios and guidelings.,

Currmncy risk

Curmency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumant will Muctuato because of changes in
foralgn exchanga rates. The Company, at present, is not exposed bo currency risk as all iransactions ane camied out in Pak
Rupaas,

Inforest rele mak
Intarest rate rak iz tha risk that the value of 8 financial ingtrumant will fluctuates dus fo changes in the market yiald.

Al the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interast bearing financial instruments is as follows:

_Effactive Intarsat Rats Carrylng Amount
2018 2097 2018 T

Varisbla rate (nstruments (Percontago) (Rupoos)

Financlal aszely

Bank balances A.75% 1o 4.6% ATEN 0 41%

Flrancial Kabdiias

Lenbiition against ansots subject bo finance lease - A4S o TRAEN

Shart toern loans from related parties - ursecuned T128% 1o 11.682% 11.20% o 11.28%

Short teern ioan - unsscured 11.20% 10 11.50% 11.20% 1o 11.20%

Flaed rate Instrumaents

Deposits with National Clearing Comoany of
Pakiatan Limited 275% to 3.80% ETRNRAA0N e T D Lt 200
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The Company doas not account for any fixed rate financial azsets and Rabilites at falr value through profit or loss. Therefore 8
charge in interest rate ot the reporting date would not have affected the after tex profit of tha Company.

Falr Value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysls for varlabla rate Instruments

A change of 100 bagis poinis in interest rafes at the reporting data would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit and
loas by the amounts shown bedow, This analysis assumes that all other vadablas remain constant. The anabysis is
parformad on the same basis for June 2017,

___Profit and loas Equity
100 bps 100 bps 100 bpa 100 bpe
Incroase decraan Incroass docraase
(Ruposs) {Rupess)

As at 30 June 2018
Variable rate instrumants 1080271 (1,080,271} 1080271 (1,080.271)
As at 30 June 2017
Varable rate instruments 2,085.208 (2,065, 208) 2,085,208 (2,085,208)
Prica risk

Price risk Includes equity price risk which Is the risk of changes in the fair value of aquity securities as a result of changes In
the levels of KSE-Index and the value of individual shares,

The tabie below summanises the Company's equity price risk as of 30 June 2018 and shows the effects of a hypothetical 10%
increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as gl the year end.

Falr value Hypothstical  Estimatsd falr Hypothstical Hypothatical Hypothstical
price change value sfter Incraass / Incroase / Incresss /
hypathetical (decreaas)in  (decreass)in OC1  (decreass)in
changa In price profit / (loss) sharshalders
biafors b equity
{Rupees)

) June 2018 A3 TER R 10% Inoroase 48,128,104 1,209,450 3,185,852 4475 202
10% decreass 392TTH0 (1.208,450) (3.185,832) (4.375282)
B0 Juna 2047 58,571,633  10% incroase E2.223. 16 1,540,800 4,118,384 5.B5T, 184
10% cocreass 50,514,850 (1,540,800} {4.118,384) (B.B57.184)

The selected hypothatical change does not reflect what could be consldered to be the best or worst cass scenarios.
Operational risk

Oparational risk ks the sk of direct or Indirect kaas ardging from 8 wide varkety of causes sssociated with the processes,
technology and infrastructume supporing the Company's cparations aeither intemaly within the Company or ecdemally at the
Company's sefvice providers, and from extemal factors other than credit, market and Bouidity risks such as those arsing from
legal and regulatory requinemenis and genarally accepted standards of invesiment management behavior. Operational risks ardse
from all of the Company's activities,

The Company's objective Is to manage operational risk 50 as 10 balance limiting of financlal losses and damage to its reputation
with achleving s oblective of generating relumns for slakehalders,

Sanlor managemant ensures that the Company’s staff have adeguate training and experence and fosters effective
communication ndated to operational sk management.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is an amount for which an assel could be exchanged or a liabiity seliled batween knowledgaable wiling parties in
am's langth transaction. The table below analysis financial instruments camied at fair value, by valvation method. The differant
levals (methods) have bean dafined as lollows:

Level 1: Fair value measuremants using quoted prces (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or llabilities.

Lewel 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices Included within Love! 1 that are obsarvable for the
assol or lability, either direcly (l.e. as prices) or indicectly (l.0. derved from prices).

Leved 3: Fair value measunements using inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on cbservable markel data {l.e.
unchservable inputs).
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Fair value of the financlal assels that are traded in active marketa are based on quoted market prices. The following table ahowa fair values
of financial assets and finencial labfites, including thelr levels in the fair value hiemrchy, These financial assets and finandal lebiities,
excapl for 0% Investment in shares of PSX, are shor term and their fair value approxdimates their carmying value,

On balance shool
finmncinl Instruments

Finencial sssets moeasured
ut falr value

invastrnant In shares of Paldslan
Stock Exchangs LimBod

Financial sssels not messursd
at falr velus
Imvestmnt in manginal Anancng
Lorg berm deposits

Trade debts

Doposits
Achrancos and other recelvables
Cash and bank balancas

Financial lisbilithes nat
measund st felr valus

Sherl toern leans from related
paties - unsncured

S todm koan - whlboursd

Uncisimied dividend

Currend portlon of Babiities
ngainal pasets subject to
finance leaso

Trada and other paynblos

On balancs aheat
financial Instruments

Financial aesets maasured
at falr valus

Irvestmont In shares of Pakislan
Stock Exchange LimBed

Fnsnciel sssets not messured
ut falr value

Invoaimant In marginal inandng
Long e doposits
Trada debis

Advanoes, deposits and

Cash and bank balances

Financial labilites not
moasured st fadr vaiue

SEnod v loans from minted
pastios - unsocured

Short torm loan - uhlsoursd

Unclsimed dividend

Currenl portion of Exbiities
againal assats sublect o
Fnance lesse

Trade and othed paynbles

30 Jursn 2018

valus

Fair valus

Hadd for
trading

Avaliable for

nalo

Headd to Loans and DOther Mnanclal Lerval 1 Leval 2 Leval 3

Fraturity Recelvables

Itabliitlon

12,084,500

3,858 32

BB o4 ® B o4

{Rupses)

4 86,217,082
- 10,081,200
. 133,053,878
- 229,817,813
- 4418225
d 126,083,853

31

= 570,250,149

41,268,011
18,853,742
2,061,638

30 June 2017

Fair vaiue

Ml b Loans ond
ity Racatvaiien

Criber financial Lewvel 1 Level 2 Leweld
abitos

15,408,000

41,160, 543

- 56,571,833
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary cbjective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios and optimal
capital structure in order to ensure ampla availabliity of finance for its existing operations, for maximizing
shareholder's value, for tapping polential investment opportunities and to reduce cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structurs and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions, Furthermore, the Company finances its operations through equity, bommowing and management of
its waorking capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix batween various sources of finance to minimise
risk.

Met capital requirements of the Company are set and regulated by PSX. These requirements are put in place to
ensure sufficlent solvency margins and are based on excess of current assets over cument llabilities. The
Company manages its not capital requirements by assessing its capital structurs against required capital level
on a regular basis.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

These financlal statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment which Is consistent
with the intemal reporting used by the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker iz
responsible for allocating rescurces and assessing performance of the operating segments.

The internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker relating to the Company's assets,
liabiitties and performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the measuremant and recognition principles
of approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan,

Thare waera no change in the reportable sagment during the year.
All non-currant assets of the Company as at 30 June 2018 are located in Pakistan.
BASE MINIMUM CAPITAL

In compllance with the Regulation 19.3.1 of the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, every Trading
Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) holder registered as a broker under Brokers and Agents Registration
Rules, 2001, Is required to maintain a Base Minimum Capital (BMC) in the amount and form as prescribed in
the Rula on the basis of Assets Under Custedy (AUC). As par tha sald regulation, as at 30 June 2018, the
Company is required to maintain BMC of Rs, 26 million,

The notional value of the TREC and the break-up value of the shares for the purpose of BMC is determined by
the PSX as under:
30 June
2018
(Rupees)

Trading Right Entittement Certificates 2,500,000

Cash deposit 5,000,000

Securitized 1,602,953 shares at Rs. 19.75 per share 31,858,322
SR,

Pakistan Stock Exchange vide their circular No. PSX/N - 4700 dated 08 August 2017, allowed the brokerage
houses to utilise the shareholding of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited shares which 15 lald as freazed with
Central Depository System against the deposit requirement of Base Minimum Capital (BMC).

RESEARCH ANALYST

At present, the Company employs six members In its research department (including head of research, two
sanlor analysts, one junior analyst, a librarlan and a data administrator), All members report to Head of
Research who In tumn reports to the Chief Executive Officer.

Compensation structure of research analysts is flat and Is subject to qualification, experience and skill set of

the person. Howevar, the compensation of anyone employed in the research department does not In any way
depand on the contents / outcome of research report.
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Curing the year, the personnel employed in the Research Deparlment have drawn an aggregate salary and
bensfils amounting to Rs. 10.738 million which comprise basic salary, madical allowanca and other banafits
as per the Company's policy.

38. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total employees at year end excluding the contractual employess were 62 (30 June 2017: 68) and the
average number of employees during the year was 70 (30 June 2017: 67).

37. GENERAL

37.1 Corresponding flgures

The fourth schadule to the Companies Act 2017 has introduced cartain presentation and classification
requirements for the elements of financial statements. Accordingly, the comesponding figures have been
rearranged and reclassified, wherever considerad necessary, to comply with the requirements of Companias
Act, 2017.

37.2 Dete of authorisation for |ssus

Thesa financial statements have been authorisad for ssue on by tha Board of Directors of
the Company.

Chief Exacutive Chief Financial Officer Director
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1. Incorporation Number 71068

2. Name of the Company "NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED"
3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-JUN-2018

I! NEXT CAPITAL

6. PATTERN OF SHARHOLDING FORM "34" SHAREHOLDER'S STATISTICS

NO. OF SHARESHOLDINGS

| NO OF SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO Total Shares |

126 1 100 728
214 101 500 105,077
62 501 1,000 58,229
144 1,001 5,000 379,552
45 5,001 10,000 363,875
19 10,001 15,000 258,241
6 15,001 20,000 115,000
4 20,001 25,000 91,125
a8 25,001 30,000 230,250
3 35,000 40,000 109,000
2 40,001 45,000 87,000
9 50,000 55,000 464,500
3 55,001 60,000 176,500
3 60,001 65,000 184,923
2 80,001 85,000 165,000
1 85,001 80,000 86,000
s 95,000 100,000 452,500
1 100,001 105,000 101,250
1 110,001 115,000 111,000
1 120,000 125,000 120,000
1 125,001 130,000 126,000
2 150,000 155,000 300,000
1 175,000 120,000 175,000
1 185,001 190,000 187,000
1 190,001 195,000 192,000
1 200,000 205,000 200,000
2 240,000 245,000 485,000
1 275,000 280,000 275,000
1 295,001 300,000 295,500
1 335,001 340,000 335,500
1 350,000 355,000 350,000
1 375,001 380,000 375,250
1 415,001 420,000 419,500
1 435,001 440,000 436,000
1 500,000 505,000 500,000
1 595,000 600,000 595,000
1 1,100,001 1,105,000 1,100,250
1 1,295,000 1,300,000 1,295,000
1 1,830,001 1,835,000 1,834,500
1 2,895,000 2,500,000 2,895,000
1 3,375,000 3,380,000 3,375,000
1 4,325,000 4,330,000 4,325,000
1 4,360,001 4,365,000 4,360,500
1 4,500,000 4,505,000 4,500,000
1 12,365,001 12,370,000 12,368,250
686 45,000,000
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MNEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
Categories Details of Shareholding as at June 30, 2018
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children [to be confirm by Company)
NAME HOLDING PRECENT
MR, MUHAMMAD ZULOARNAIN MAHMOOD KHAN Indibvidusiy 2,250 0.01
MRS. HANNA KHAN Incividualy 562 0.00
MR. MUHAMMAD ZUBAIR ELLAHI Iadushy 562 0.00
MR. HASAN SHAHNAWAZ Indbduaty 2,250 0.01
MR. UMER HABIB Individuals 562 0.00
MUHAMMAD NAJAM ALI Inhsduss 12,368,250 27.49
MRS, HANNA KHAN Indiadush 1,100,250 245
MR, TARIQ WASEEM GHAZI Indiiduaiy 24,135 0.05
Sub-Total 13,498,811 30.00
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions
NAME HOLDING PRECENT
MCBE BANK LUMITED - TREASURY Frarsdal Instimmions 4,360,500 9.69
Sub-Total 4,360,500 9.69
Modarabas and Mutual Funds
MNAME HOLDING PRECENT
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND Ml Fasrd 375,250 0.83
CDC - TRUSTEE MATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST Mutual Food 585,000 132
Sub-Total 970,250 216
Others
NAME HOLDING PRECENT
MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LTD Jodnt Stk Cormpanti 3,375,000 7.50
MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LUIMITED Jolnt Stock Compantes 1 0.00
Habib Bank AG Zurich Zurich Switrerdand Finarial nstrutions 37,000 0.08
MULTILINE SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED Joint Pock Companies 20,000 004
ABBAS CORPORATION [PVT) LIMITED Joint Stock Companies 500,000 111
MNCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT Jodnt Snck Compantes 15,000 0.03
SHADAB INNOVATIONS (PRIVATE) LIMITED Jodnt Shuck Companbs 25,000 0.06
ABA AL HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED Joint Stk Compantes 5,625 0.01
PEARL SECURITIES LIMITED - MF Solnt $tock Compantes 30,000 0.07
ASDA SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. Jping Stk Companies 60,000 0.13
STANDARD CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED - MF Jodnt Stk Companhes 18,000 0.04
BACKERS & PARTNERS (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF Jokiit Stock Companies 37,000 0.08
MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF Joint Stock Companies 11,500 0.03
Sub-Total 4,138,126 9.20
Individual

HOLDING PRECENT

Individuals 22,032,313 48.95

Grand Total 45,000,000 100
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PROXY FORM
IWe being a member of Next Capital Limited
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss. of Next Capital Ltd
failing whom Mr./Mrs./Miss, of as my/ our proxy to

attend and act for me/ us, and on my/ our behalf, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, Oclober 25, 2017 at 09:00 a.m. at The Royal Rodale Auditorium, TC-V, 34% Street, Khayaban-g-Sehar,
Phase-V, Ext., D.H.A,, Karachi, and any adjoumment thereof.

Dated this day of 2018
Specimen Signature of
Proxy
Revenue Fedia Mo,
Stamp
Rs.5/= Participant 1.0, No.
Sub Account No.
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Altemate Proxy
Follo No. Felio Ne.
Parficipant 1.D. No. Participant 1.D. No.
Sub Account No. Sub Account No.
Note:

1. If a member is unable to attend the Meeting, he / she may appoint another member as his / her proxy and
send this form to Next Capital Limited, 8th Floor, Horizon Tower, Plot Ne. 2/8, Block-ll, Clifton, Karachi, to
reach not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

2. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy holder shall be fumished with
the proxy form,

3. The proxy holder shall produce his { her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

4. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' Resolution / Power of Attomey with specimen signature
shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company
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I The Company Secretary

MNext Capital Limited I
I 8" Floor Horizon Tower, Plot No. 2/6
I Block Iil, Clifton, Karachi i
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8th Floor Horizon Tower, Plot No. 2/6

Head Office:

Block Ill, Clifton, Karachi.
Pakistan.

UAN: 92-21-111-639-825
Fax: 92-21-35292621

Lahore Branch Office:

House # 43-A/S, Zafar Ali Road,
Aziz Avenue Gulberg-5, Lahore

Ph: 92-42-35791281-88,
Fax: 92-42-35791289

DHA Lahore Branch Office:

Plaza # 67 - CCA, Block - DD
Phase - IV, DHA,
Lahore Cantt.

Ph: 92-42-35694113

HLay
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